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CAf'J· 

I;ILA B°URZACOTT 

This is an interview with Lila Burzacott in her house in North Cooma on the 
15 February 1982. Lila was married to Charlie Wheeler and her maiden name 
is Whitehead. The Wheelers and the Whiteheads are both families that were 
intimately connected with the upper Murray and Wheelers hut and that area, 
from there through to Tooma. I"'-"tc-.--~~w bJ k(a.vs. i--lvt"-''-~ ke . 

KH: If I could start maybe a bit further back. Do you remember when 
the Whiteheads came to that area. How much of your family history can you 
recall? 
LB: Well my grandfather came out here from Scotland in about 18 . .• .. (le+ 

k ol»v+ ../1..iJ.) if he were alive today he'd be over 100 [her father] and my grandfather was 
95 or 96 when he died, so that would bring the Whi teheads to coming to the 
upper Murray in about the 1840s or earlier. 
KH: That's very early , very soon after the first explorers probably. 
I think Hume and Hovell went through there back in the 1830s. 
LB: If I'd have knownyou wanted that ••• 
KH: Oh it doesn 't matter so much, I'm just trying to fill in a little 
bit of family history as you go. 
LB: Dad would have been 106 - 110 if he'd been alive today. We were 
teenagers when my grandfather died so that would be 50 years ago . He came 
from Scotland down here - now I know that he came from Melbourne to Burrin~ah ( ? I 

?\ . 
when he first came here, married my grandmother and she was a Scammel, she 
was married when she was about 16, they had a log hut at Burring~ah but just 

/\ 
exactly where I don't know now. The first two babi es died - I think there 
are about ten in the family ... 

b~&. e..-s. Q~ 7 KH: This i s your fathe~l- sisters . ... , I\ 
LB: They lived at . ti my grandmother used t ell me - there Burringmah, to 

A 
was some Abori ginals and they left a baby girl behind and she mothered it. 
Thinking back now, I was only a kid when she t old me this - I t hink they were~, 

· · h b 11 k d f B · h h · known as Wa,1 bah...--near Wa/wt coming int e u oc ray rom urrin~a tow at is now P 

Cudgewa, out of Cudgewa and they were crossing a creek in t he bullock dray 
and my grandmother and this little girl - I would say at the time she would -be 3 or 4 years of age - the dray hit a log and threw the little Aboriginal 
girl off and t he bullock wheel went over her and killed her. I never forgot 
that. She used to talk about that quite a lot. Well then they moved from 
Burringhiah and that was the first decent home they had. 

/\ 
KH: What were your grandparents names? 
LB: Johnny - Johnny Whitehead . Never swore, never smoked in his life 
but could he drink whiskey. If he got annoyed with you - he was always known 
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'beggarin' Johnny - it wasn't bugger it was beggarin'. He used to scream 
at us kids 'You beggarin' kids be quite' - he never swore. 

KH: 

LB: 
KR: 
LB: 

And his wife was Scammel? 
Yes Francts. 
So you'd be related to Errol Scammel in a sort of a way? 
We'd have to start getting into 47 cousins I think, but there 

would be a connection. Then my grandfather moved down to Towong and if 
you want to see some beautiful qo( &-I~ and a very old slab home, it is 
still standing. 
KR: At Towong, not Towong Hill? I must look out for it next time 
I'm over there. How far is it '7 

LB: I'll tell you who's in it. There are three boys living in it, 
Archie, Mervin and Paddy Whitehead. 
KR: 

LB: 
Your grandfather built a hut there, which is still standing 
Yes and my father was more or less grown up at the time and 

he did the ~z.,....., o,- the slabs. It was a big old home, I don't know 
what it's like today, the boys are living in it. Well they're not boys 
anymore, the eldest son would be 70 or more. Then the house at Wab6"',A(?), 
my grandfather owned practically all practically owned from wabb~M 
to Toweng in those days. I think it was his son John that went into Wa/:,1,a~, 
then there was Eddie not far from there. His grandson has that now. There 
was a big family and Aunt Agnes was killed. She was riding out to Wa~~n 
with an umbrella and it frightened the horses you know when they had 
the telephone poles and the thing out to stop them from falling over 
she ran under that and broke her neck. There were only two girls in my 
father's family - Agnes and Elsie - oh and boys, crumbs, there was Tom, 
Jimmy 
KR: 
LB: 
KH: 

LB: 

There would have been 7 or 8 boys? 
Dave, Bill and Arch and Ernie. 
What was your father's name? 
Ernie, he was Ernie George. 

had a cousin Ernie who was very deaf. 
He was Ernie George and then he 

My father was deaf too , but dad 
was known as Ernie George and the other was known as deaf Ernie. 
KH: Any reason as to why they went deaf? 
LB: Yes. Dad went to bo~rding school, he was the only one in the 

'"' Mel bour .. e family who went to boarding schoo~nd got some virus or something - not 
home with mum to sort of see to him - and I think the other Ernie, he was 
in the First World 
old enough at that 
one that we called 

War, because he was older than my father, dad wasn't 
time.(I think) It was through his ears and then the 
deaf Ernie, he was very deaf, being at the war didn't 
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help him. 
KR: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

Did they start going up to the mountains at all? 
No. 
The Whiteheads didn't? 

No, they didn't go to TQobng, not until after I was married. 
Dad would send a few up, it was a bit short of grass, but he used to go 
there a lot with my husband, he enjoyed it - fencing - he was very good 
with -th~ hands. That hut that's there now, that was built before I ever 
went up there, before I married, but how long it had been there I don't 
know. 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

You mean the first v'e..-s.10"' 

Yes . It got to this stage 
of it? 

Lindsay Willis remembers a hut there, back in the 201s I think. 
Well I would say yes. 

So it coulcPfback to the first World War, the 1910s or something. 
No. When my mother-in-law used to go up there when she was 

first married. That would have been, my husband would have been 70, that 
would only be 60 years ago wouldn't it, when that hut was there. 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
War 
LB: 

or 

That's 1920? 
Yes. 

There was quite a few buildings built after the First World 
about that time. 

Well that first hut I know, I was never in it. I would say 
c----.... that this hut, the original of this site, must\lo'have just been thrown up 

a bit together and then my father went up and helped to make it what it 
is today. 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 

LB: 

Do you know if they rebuilt it completely? 
No. 
They pulled the old one down? 
No. 

Would the old one have been a slab hut too? 
I think the old one was a slab hut and all they did was pull 

any bad ones out, sort of refurbished, rebuilt. 
KH: 
was taken 
LB: 
when they 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 

LB: 

It looks in good condition on these photographs and this one 
in 1945. .. 
Yes it would have only been there about '35 or '37. It was 

remodelled. 
When was the first time that you went up? 
I went up there about '32. 
You did see the old one? 
Yes. 
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KH: It's substantially the same, it had two rooms and the verandah 

across the front? 
LB: No. 
KH: The verandah may have been added! 
LB: I think the back verandah and that back room was put on it 
when they remodelled it. The front verandah might have had a sk; 1111,·"' 
over it but no floor on it in the very early 30s. 

KH: Where the fences around then? 

LB: No. 
KH: So the fences went in at the same time as ..:f-1'~J •·-· 1 

LB : Yes, I would say that was all done at the same time. There 
were fences there but not very good. They remodelled the hut and built 
yards and fences. 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 

Were you there when they were building? 

No. 
Do you know how far away they went to get the trees for the 

slabs? Did they take a bullock team up with them? 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

They'd have to, that would be the only way in those days. 
The forest of alpine ash is right behind the hut on the hill. 
Yes, well that's where they would have got the timber, they 

wouldn't have travelled any distance with a bullock team. You see, the 
bullock dray is there in one of these photos. 
KH: It was your husband Charlie and your father who built it, who 
did the remodelling? 
LB: Yes and the fencing. 
the name of Bill Hamilton was 
was no relation or nothing to 

That might have been ~en this chap by 
scwf-

with them, he was jus~or ing there. He 
do with the family. 

KH: 
LB: 
too . 
KH: 

It was on freehold land! 
Then we used to go up there trapping. That chap is now dead 

Trapping rabbits? 
LB: Yes. We used to pack traps in. I've been up there with them 
for a couple of months. C«:>eok,,-,_, cu.vi 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 
LB : 
KH: 

Have you? 
Yes when they were trapping I used to go with them. 
Did you sleep in one of the old iron beds? 
Yes . 
There's a double one in the living room I think and there might 

have been one or two single beds around. 
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LB : We used to have one room and then we had a single bed when my 
daughter - she was only ... I don't think she was going to school the year 
we took off and Father Xmas came there- a_.-(. pacKe,d eve";J+"'-,~ /~ 
KH: That's a long time to be in there, that's really good. There 
wouldn't have been many women that went up with the men to the huts. 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

Oh yes I'd go up, I'd leave my daughter with my mother-in-law. 
And Charlie was working with or for his father at the time. 
It was a partnership. 

KH: Oh was it, between Charlie and Bill. The property was in the 
name of both of them I suppose? 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB : 

Well it would have been then, yes . 
Did Charlie have any brothers or sisters? 
No, h~ was an only child. 
And .Wi~~~would have been up there too? 

Oh heavens yes, he used to go mustering. He used to bring cattle 
from over here, he used to come here and buy cattle. 
KH: Were they cheaper to buy here? 
LB: Oh yes. My husband came over here, rode from there, over the 
mountains when he was about five. 
KH: U-A.+6n his own horse? 
LB: Yes. My daughter had her own horse.Before she started school 
she was up there . 

KH, Do you remember how many 
W i '"~.'jand Charlie would have brought 

head of cattle or anything like that, 
over from here. 

LB: I wouldn't like to say how many. We'd take from our side a 
hundred or more - more . 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

Mobs of 500 or 600? 
Oh no, wouldn't be that big. 
200 or 300 maybe? 

I used to go up there with them mustering and they'd take me 
out and leave me anywhere. 
KH: Did you boil the billy or •.• ? 
LB: No, with a dozen head of cattle and take them back to the hut. 
Half the time I wouldn't know where the hut was, there'd be that much scrub 
around me. B t I'd 11 et-' u usua y turn up before dark .• /"snow. 
KH: You stayed on sometimes - or this is freak snow? 
LB: Well we'd get an early snow - no they'd never take me if it 
looked like bad weather, but they've mustered in snow. As late as April 
or May. 



378 
Lila Burzacott 

KH: 

LB: 
KH: 

What was usually the time that they came out by? 
Well they'd always like to be out by April. 

Easter or something? 
LB: Yes, because that would be when the snow would start, but then 
they'd get caught . Then they'd go back for a secend muster, t• get the 

stragglers and they'd very often get snow then, very often. 
KH: So they'd have one big muster and then they'd combine with some 

of the other lessees and so on. .(.-u- .fJ.t,'~ r.ul~ 
LB: 
KH: 

Yes, well now the McPh i.~s, they had country " . They seem to be everywhere, the McPh;es. 

there too. 

LB: Everybody used to sort of go around about the same time to muster ,·· \_ 

and if they'd get any of your cattle or if we'd get any of tl-.ei,~s. , we'd 
either t ake them t o them or put them on the track home. It wa s gener ally 
an unwritten law in the mountains that you sort of helped each ether. 

KH : It would be a devil of a job going through every creek flat 

and everywhere where the cattle could be. 1_ 
Sa~ 

LB: And then as you say, the meats · and the hooks up there 

if we killed, we'd share it . 
KH : So you'd kill a bullock and what other stockmen would come and 

collect some. 
LB: Yes. Who was the old chappy, Tiny somebody , who came from Tumbarumba, 

used to ride a little horse .•. 

KH: Wasn't very tall? 

LB: No. He used to look after the old Toolo~ hut over across the 

river from us. Did you come across that hut? 

KH: 

LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

On the Toolong Range? 
Yes, the McPh i.es would have had that I think. 
That's on the track from Round Mountain to J argun~al? 

Yes. 
It's a ruin now. There's a place there know,as Toolong hut. 

Yes we used to call that the old Toolong~vf. 

What did you call your hut? 
Well I don't know. I suppose it was just our hut then. 

Was it known as Wheelers then? 
Well yes, other people always called it Wheelers hut. It had 

no particular 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 

LB: 

It didn't have other names? 

No. 
Names didn't change or anything like that, it was always Wheelers? 

Yes . 
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KH: Because sometimes names changed when a new lessee took over 
a particular hut. 
LB: 
hut. 
KH: 

LB: 

No, it was always Wheelers hut, everybody spoke of it as Wheelers 

w.~ 
Do you think · would have built the first one? 
No. I would not think so. I don't know who had that country 

before he did. 
KH : Maybe he was the first! 
LB: I've never heard it spoken about . This Russell chap might be 
able to tell you about 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

Leo? 
Yes. 
I don't know that Leo knows that much about that country. 
They didn't come quite that far on this side. Some of the McPhles 

should . I don't know, there's a Geoff McPhie about my age around here, · 
but I don't think he would have known anything about it. 
KH: No one else from the Jindabyne people has mentioned any McPht.es 
that I should go and see. 
LB: 
KH: 

Mare? 
LB: 

Yet there was McPhle's hut. 
That's the Grey Mare isn't it? That's what's known as the Grey 

I suppose that would be, that would be McPhJ.e ' s hut on the Grey 
Mare. Is it still there? 
KH: There is a miner's hut there. It was put up in 1949 as part 
of the Grey Mare mine. 
LB: We used to get quite a lot of their cattle, we used to get very 
annoyed with their cattle. They'd eat their side out and their cattle 
would come over on to us. 
KH: Did you ever meet any of the Bells when you were up there? You 
may know of Charlie Bell, who's the fishing inspector, but his father was 
involved with the Grey Mare mine back in '35, '36 , about the time you were 
down a t Wheelers. 
LB: No I don't recall a Bell. 
KH: Would have been old enough t o have built the first hut 
at Wheelers? 
LB: 
KH: 

Well if he were alive today, he'd be over a hundred wouldn't he? 
You said he died when he was 81 I think. 

LB: He was a couple of years older than dad, they both died the 
. (ok ti(-.-) 

One died January and one died February, that would have been • • . 27- 28 
/\ 

one year. 

years( a.,•) 
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lJ1°"'::2 KH: That puts it back in the 50s - '54/'55. So would have been 
born in the 1870s - '78/'80 - so by the time the first World War came around 
he would have been in his 30s, so he could have been in a position to buy 

some land up there. 
LB: He probably did. I've never heard them speak about, or how they 

really got it . 

KH: It's very unusual, they would have been surrounded by crown land 

with a leasehold ... 
LB: How they came to get that I just couldn't tell you. When I came 

into the family it just appeared to me it was something they always had. 

KR: I think it was Colin Fiml.ay said it was about 700 or 800 acres. 
Would that be about what you remember it to be? 
LB: Yes. 
KH : That probably partly explains why they built such a substantial hut. 
Most of the other mountain huts are just one-roomed, a lot of them are just 
a dirt floor, they're nothing as sophisticated as Wheelers, especially looking 

Q"'4 
at these photographs . the trouble they went to for some of these fences and 

' /' 
so on 
LB: And then of course the National Park took over and we did nothing but 

go backwards and forwards to Wagga. 
KH: The office was in Wagga then. 
LB: Yes. We had to drive from Towong to Wagga. To be quite honest, 
we never ever got wha t we paid for it. With what it cost us to get what we 
should have got for it, we were robbed. - 1,)1~ 
KH: When would that have been, in the 50s? Whe,µ was still alive? 

LB : I've got to stop and think about this because after we were married, 
and that's in the 40s •••• 
KH: 
LB: 
on and on. 
KH: 

Because the National Park was declared in 1944. 
Well that's when we were having all the trouble and it went on and 

Did you still take stock up there even though it had gone back to 
the National Park? 
LB: Well we did for a while, there were times we .couldn't eventually. 
But we stuck it out. 
KH: It would have been until about 1957 I think, that the grazing leases 
were still going on. 
LB: 
KH: 

It's a bit hard to work out. ~.:-, 
It's a bit like a school test isn't it - remember your dates. 

A 
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L.~. 
LB: 

I-f;. wo...-s.e • 
We got rid of it before Charlie's father died, but it wasn't all 

that long I didn't think. 
KH: 

LB : 
Did anyone else .~ce 

i,,.,'1 We lu .... a,-/- We,./ v~ 
Well ,.,_A - too - we had country freehold _ d , , . an the 

.-I· 7 

Patens paid us for it, or paid the deposit •.. in those days we were very poor 
and running on a mortgage and we thought, beaut, now we're out of debt and 
we had to damn-well give the money back to the latens. 

KH: Which property was this for? 
LB: Th .J~ ey were over at We.lar~gang,~atens, they were going to buy it. 
They had gone as far as paying the deposit and then when the National Parks 
came, ,vie._ 1-\c.\d ., to give the deposit back. Well I th " k 'd b in we a out spent it. 
Still these things happen. 
KH: The Patens have got a hut, or there is a hut known as Patens down 
Tooma Dam way. 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 

Yes. 

Did you ever go to it? 
I've been there. 

You would have ridden out that way sometimes I should think! 

c_t~.;c\.,<•i's'.") Well sometimes, then we used to go up through P.iil.rces and up 
Bradley's Gap. I remember we had traps on a pack horse going up Brad .ey 's Gap 
and it go t very tired of course - I think we had too big a load on it_ and 
it slipped over the bank and I got screamed at to hang on to it's h,t~~i~s 
always the one that got screamed at. Who was with us that time Henry 
Stockwell I think, he's dead now, he was no connection, he just worked for us. 
They gradually got the horse, with its tail up against a tree, otherwise it 
would have gone and we're getting these damn traps off. You try and get a 
pack horse down and get traps off it . That night we arrived at the hut about 
midnight , it was pitch dark ••. 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

At Wheeler's hut? 
Yes. 

Was that considered an easier route than over Snakey Plain way? 
Oh well sometimes we used to think it might be a bit quicker if you 

were just go ing straight through , it was six of one and half a dozen of the 
other really. Yo;, d miss the Roaring 1'8ag and the Old Bay ~\rad· ey ' s Gap was 

.I\ 
a shocker. 
KH: Did you ever go in by Everards Flat or Everards Spur, further to 

> the south. 
LB : No. If we were going with cattle we'd go to Greg Greg· -, and 
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stay a night or we'd go to Clover Flat and you'd pull your saddle off, take 

your boots off and slept. 
KR: 
LB: 
KR: 

LB: 

Just under a tree? 

Yes. 
If it rained that was bad luck was it? 
Yes. You'd never take a tent with you. ~hen we'd go to GregGc-~9 quite 

often and stay there with the cattle. Because GregGr~'was owned by my husband's 
aunt. All sortR of things used to happen, the cattle never wanted to go 

up the Roaringl'Oet~. or the Devil's Elbow. 

KR: They're very steep are they? 
LB: Very, very. When the bullock dray went through Clover Flat, cut 

- Gltf through Wolse~~ when they built the dam. 
KR: The old S.M.A. road, followed that old bullock track! 

LB: As a matter of fact the chappiesiha~-were surveying that road got 
my husband to help them put the road in there. They started to put one in 
up the RoaringMag and he told them they were lunatics, they'd never do it. 

KR: 
LB : 
KR : 

So they went somewhere else? 

Yes. 
So the bullock wagon would have gone ••. 

LB: No exactly no, because when we got to Clover Flat and the Snowy 
kept on going that way, well we used to go straight up to the right - zic-za: up 
through to the river. It's just a bit different to the war we used to go. 
KR: It's a real bush track. 
LB: And somewhere, probably when we're leaving Cooma in about October and 
whether I've still got it - I've got things stuck away - I don't know what I've 
got . I've got a beautiful picture, or did have, my daughter-in-law would have 
that, of the bullock dray going up out of the river - it was very steep . 
KR: And then it would have gone along Broadway - Broadway Plains and 

up the Toolo1j diggings. 
LB : Very often when we were taking a load - it used to be horse feed -
we'd have to take the bullock dray to take horse feed and salt mainly. We 

used to feed our stock horses. 
KR: 
LB: 
KR : 

LB: 

You'd take your own oats and chaff in with you on the bullock dray. 
Yes. 
So the bullock dray would have to go in at leas't once a year. 
Yes, always once a year. Well you'd feed your horses at home 

for three months to get them conditioned, you couldn 't just pick a horse out 
of the paddock and go up there - mustering was hard work, hard riding too, I 
know that. You couldn't take a green horse in - you'd feed it and rub it 
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ever' 
and neve~go up there without a spare or two. Usually you'd be able to ride 
one of your pack horses, but you'd always make sure that you had an extra 
horse to ride. You don't know what might happen. I can remember one day we 
were going along Swampy Plain, there was a mud patch there with a log in the 
middle of it, my husband rode through it, got over this log and it was very 
boggy. His horse was floundering around, he sang out 'Look out' - but he 
was a second too late and mine had fallen - away I went. I'm rolling down 
the hill and it's rolling after me, what else could you do but roll to get out 
of its way. Well all sorts of things could have happened. We were up there 
once - on what I used to call my pony - she went lame and had terrible trouble 
trying to get her home. You always had to allow for this sort of thing and 
we never ever left our hut without feed. We'd lock the bedroom, we always 
used t o lock our bedroom. We used to think of our own personal blankets and 
things like that and we'd leave a few clothes there. But we always left 
bed and blankets and food in the main room. 
KR: What sort of food did you leave? 
LB: Things in tins like tea and sugar and flour, oatmeal - something 
that people could get a feed from. I was very cranky once ••• the mountain 
men always took plum puddings - you seemed to do nothing but cook damn plum 
puddings all the time - and I'd made these plum puddings for them to take up. 
Of course you just used to hang them up in the bedroom, that you wanted to 
keep. We might leave one small one in case somebody came along ... and some 
coot broke into it and ate all the plum puddings. They got up there to 
mustering and there were no puddings . But these were the sorts of things you'd 
do but we would never ever leave the hut - if somebody got into trouble or 
lost or something - there would be something that they could have a meal and 
a bed and blankets. The last day before we left we'd just have a day around 

~.~,.~ lltiu( 
the hut going through food and we always cut wood an~st~cked it on the back 
verandah. I mean you might get up there yourself and it'd come on a storm 
and you've got no hope of lighting a fire if you've got wet wood. 
KR: That's a tradition that's still kept going by and large. Some 
people abuse it. 
LB: Well we never have. Some people would use it, they mightn't leave 
as much as you'd ~ft, but we never ever left there unless leaving wood. 
KR: It would be nice to come across a plum pudding hanging in the 
bedroom. It doesn't happen these days. 
LB: I think at the time they had an idea who it was too. They broke 
into the bedroom. Well we didn't lock it, we just put a chain and a lock, 
just for honest people. If somebody wanted to break in, as you know very 
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well, they only have to pull a slab off and they could get in. It was just 
t,1ou{t;( 

a few little personal things that we/\leave there. 

KH: Was there a double bunk in that bedroom at all or were there single 

beds? 
LB: We had a double iron bed and a single iron bed in the bedroom. 

It wouldn't have been a full double bed I don't think, what they used to 

call in those days - a three quarter. You went in the door here and the 

biggest bed was there and then over here behind the door. 

table 
KR: 
LB: 
KH: 

over, that was the dressing table . . 
iee. ' A round table -~hats not there any more. 

Isn't it; A dining table. 

A mirror too. 

Then we had a round 

LB: Oh yes. I'd t ake up a nice cloth and put over it and I had a railing 

across the corner and I'd take a little curtain. We were always out picking 

flowers. 
KR: Nice homely touches. 

LB: When the wild flowers were fresh and blooming - do the washing, 

hang it along the fence. The ~:i{ trouble was when you were having a bath. 
The boys would leave an~ I'd say I arn having a bath.at such and such a time 

. ;/". roJ'c, o.-er .flte. h.01"'1 ~) 
and then you'd watched fu:rfear somebody/\:... you d always have a big towel. 
KH: You'd boil up the cast iron pots in the open fire place! 

LB: Kerosene tins. 
KR: Just the one or several? 
LB: Several, you'd want to have ten to fill them. 
KH: You ' d get the water out of the race line. 
LB: Yes and we used to cook in the camp oven - make dampers, stews, bake 

a dinner. The year we were up there for Xmas we had roast goose . 

KR: You brought it up with you? 

LB: Yes. My husband took my daughter and we went up - I can 't think -

we were up there for quite a while, must have been a month at that time. He 

was probably mending fences or something .. we took her up and took pack 
-fhc... C~rat-~us.~ 

horses and before we left home I packed bits and her and I s t ayed there 
/", .. : 

on our own and he went home one day with the pack horse and he packed Father 
C_n~;tW\114.~ . 

KR: 
LB: 
well she 

01r1~S 
Would he play Father · ... too? 

/'-
She didn't know there wasn't a Father Xmas then, she was too young -

o,,..s+·-n 
thought it was great - Father finding her up there - it was 

/"'--... 
quite a thrill, and to us too. 
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KR: Did he come back dressed up? 
LB: Oh no. I think he came back and took the pack saddle$ off, waited 

0,nJ+~ 
till she went to sleep and dragged things out. We all had our presents 

/\. 
up there. This is when that Sinbad the sailor 's mob - they used to call 
themselves - he was a schoolteacher from Melbourne and they used to 

END SIDE 1 

LB: we used to milk a cow - when I was there or my daughter - and ,..., 
quite often · husband. We always had in the mob, a milker. That's why they 
built yards, so we could keep the cow. 

_bole. 
There was a cow there. 

KR: I haven't seen that there. 
LB: 
KH: 

Down the back of the chimney. 
.b 

Yeah, below there - it's all shru~ there now, there might be 
still bits of it lying there. 
LB: And we used to milk the cow, we'd shut the cal f up at night -
we mightn't milk every day. I used -fo scald the milk and we'd have beautiful 
clotted cream. 
KR: 
LB: 
KR: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KR: 

the men 

Like a cream cheese i s it? 
It's thick and beautiful. 
Did you make butter up there too? 
If we were running short of butter. 
How would you churn that? 
I'd just stir it up with a spoon . 
This cow would be up there for 4 or 5 months of the year, and 

would milk it when you weren't there! 
LB: If they wanted milk and milk for the dogs. Oh yes we'd always 
have a cow that could be milked with a calf. We'd shut the calf up at night 
and milk her in the morning and then let her out with the calf, the same 

O'\. '(es, 
as we do4t home.AI used to make custard and all sorts of things - boiled 

. . (l(a.:? ~or.-ow 
bl. . custard,Aand baked!ttstf;G and then the next day you'd make a junket ., q.,.,( 'fOV eovlc( 

(lnc111t,r)(JeJ • Yov'tJ'/ 'l"Ut\ i+ 't"'e v.1eek . 
J/\.We used to have a lo of boiled puddings in the old pudding cloth. We . 

always had - fruit cake. 
KR: You 'd take up your raisins and mixture 
LB: No, we'd make the fruit cake before we left home, they keep well. 
We used to have tins to pack them in - we always had some sort of cake and 
biscuits that we'd make to take with us. If you stayed up there for a couple 
of months you'd be eating very light. You'd say ' well we've got a piece 
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of cake each for the next three day~. 

KR: 
LB: 
KR: 

Oh your rations would go down. 

Yes. 
I do that bushwalking sometimes . 

LB: 
lunches. 

You'd take these sorts of things when it was good t• cut packed 
You see if you ' re out mustering all day, you'd have to take your 

lunch with you. 

KR: You'd make the lunches for the men in the mornings? 

LB: And myself too and I'd go. o' c.../oc..k '? I.Jno.+- ' KR: You'd be up pretty early I suppose. 

As soon as it was daylight you'd be out of bed. Whatever 
LB: Daylight. 
you're doing - well you'd just go till dark. 
evening and we ' d always take books. 

We used to play cards in the 

KR: What sort of cards did you play, what sort of games? 

LB : Oh well whoever could play what - euka, 500. Then when we got 
d 1 lo We always packed cards more sophisticated in suppli~, we use to Pay so • 

and a crib board. 

KR : I don ' t know crib, is that with dice? 

LB : Cards. If we couldn 't find the crib board, we used to use a bar 

of soap to make a crib board. 

KR: 
LB : 
KR : 
LB: 

Did you ever make any damper? 

Oh yes. 
Did you ever mix damper with raisins or anything like that? 

Yes - make a bit of a change. We used to have a lot of dumplings 

up there, boiled dumplings . 

KR: Just a lump of flour and water dropped into the pot. 

LB: Yes, and we always had honey, golden syrup and jams . We took 

everythin g there, there wasn't anything, . • 

KR: 
LB : 

was this taken up on the bullock dray or in pack saddles?~ 
When t he bullock dray had to go we would pack a lot of ti~stuff 

..f"-a:d B · 1 ' d pack it because by the d S ]·ams - and sen . .,...up. ut main y we an preserve - , , 
time you got the salt and the horse feed on the bullock dray it was as much 

as the bullocks could do and you ' d want to keep your load • ··· 
KR: You took a lot of salt up then? 
LB: Oh yes, cattle need salt. By the time you went up to muster, 
the salt that they ' d put out would be running low and i t' s more or less a 

track for the cattle. 

KR: That's right, it's a nice way of keeping them where you want them. 
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LB : We had our different salt camps, we used to call them in different 
areas and that was one thing, that when you'd go up you ' d always check -
how much salt was left at each camp. If they ' d run out of salt, well you ' d 
take a block to put out. 
KH : Can you remember where you put your garbage, the old bottles and 
tins and things like that? 

LB : We had a hole down below what we called the country dunny . 
had to have a country dunny . 
KH : 
LB: 
KR: 

LB: 
KH : 

That ' s gone I think. 
Has it . We built a beauty. 
No, that's gone. 
What a shame. 

Down behind the chimney. 

The hole would still be ther e no doubt . 

We 

LB : It had a couple of planks along and a door and a bag hanging down 
at the door . 
KH : JI"'.> · proof, but not t oo bad. 
LB: 

Not 
No ,.(.!vi not . · · proof, but private. You ' d usually count heads if 

everybody was home, and say well it ' s my turn next . 
KH: And the garbage is beyond that? 
LB : Yes . Well you've got to have hygiene and this is something that 

Well 
we were pretty keen about . We just didn't toss things around./'It's l ike 
beLt3- at home, you keep your home tidy and wherever you're living you keep 
it tidy . 
KR: 
LB: 
KR : 

LB : 
KH : 
LB: 
KH: 

Did you have much vegetables or fruit? 
No, we were never there long enough. 
No, but you took things with you like that? 
Oh yes. 
What sort of vegetables? 
Dried or salted down - t ake them in jars. 
That you preserved yourself? 

LB: Yes. You would in the vegey season - on. I used to bottle 
/'-

frui t, make sauce - you'd always say well this is for here and that goes 
to the mountains. 
KH : What abeut fresh vegetables? 
LB: We ' d take potatoes, but to take cabbage and that sort of thing -
well ... if you get a pack horse that can be as contrary as the one we used to 
call Jerry - he ' d hit every tree. There ' s one way and he got stopped -
if you have a bad pack horse you want to pack him with rock salt and take 
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him through the heaviest timber you can - he wont hit a tree again - it hurts 

his ribs. 
KH: It's like putting rocks in his pack. 

LB: Yes. But all sorts of things used to happen with pack horses -

packets slip, you'd turn around and here's the pack nearly on to the ground 

and you'd be wondering why the darn horse wasn't following you and you'd 

look round .•• then you'd have to unpack and put it all back again. Then 

we had one that every time you started to pack it he'd want to turn around 
and bite you. They get very cunning, pack horses, very cunning. 

KH: I Went On a rl..de with Talbingo Trails through We had some problems -
t a fl.·ve day trip, we had the same sort of problems . into some of that coun ry, 

We lost several bottles of whis½y · the first day because the pack horse dumped 

one of it's packs. 
LB: f h "fi t ti This was something that Yes, but you learn a ter t e rs me. 
we never ever went to the mountains without rum and whisky ·, but rum especially, 
because if you were out in the snow and you came in wet and cold - you had 
to look after your own health - you couldn't just go up and be sloppy or 

if somebody got a scratched finger it~;+uld become infected very quickly. 
We always kept banda ges - a first ai~generally . 
KH: Did you use the rum as an antiseptic? 

LB: 

KH: 
LB: 

I don't know that we ever had to really do that because we preferred 

that's how I learnt to drink rum and whis~y ·• 
Did you. 
Yes, not that I drink much of anything but in the winter time 

I still will have a rum. It was a ritual at night, especially if it was 
cold. I don't think that we were ever.:· up there - before you had your dinner -
everybody would have a drink, even my daughter. She had her own glass and 
used to have rum and a drop of milk in it. 

KH: How old was she when she firs t went up there? 
LB: She'd only be about 4 or 5. She'd have about that much milk and 

about three drops of rum in it. 
ankles were easily happening. 

You'd have accidents up there, sprained 

KH : Did you ever hurt yourself? 
J:. t:1 -+e.mbleo .. - · 

LB: Yes I did.I\ We camped under the trees at W.alvf'V\b~ I think, took 
my boots off, slept on the ground and I got bitt~~ with jumper ants. I put 
my boots on and it took two men to get them off .· . - pull them off - and 
they were the only pair of riding boots I had and I needed them. One was 
hanging a round my waist, the other one pulling, eventuall~ot my boot off. 
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We spent one night - none of us got to bed - I sat with my leg in a bucket 
of hot water and then in a bucket of cold. Rubbed metho on it and cloudy P 

bu~ o"'e. •;-ammonia, I was crook then~ that's the only time - that would have bee~he 
worst thing that happened to any of us. There was never anyone with a broken 
leg or a bad fall. Oh we often had a fall, you'd be riding and the horse 
would stumble because it was rough. I fell off once and went head first 
into the river through a pony stumbling. 
KH: It's pretty cold that river. 
LB : In those days when we went up there we would always leave home 
early and we would arrive there by about 4 o'clock and we'd talk of nothing 

,.fv-ov,,., 
· · the time we left home, until it happened that we would be sitting down 
to fresh trout for our dinner. 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
and put 
know who 
set, the 

That someone else had already caught? 
No. 

You'd catch them on the way? 
We'd get up to the hut and everybody 'bang' - unpack everything 

everything away and I'd stay and wash down the tables - you didn't 
might have beeQ using it - I'd clean out the hut, get the table -" ./,.:C. , ,.,_ 

the river and they might billy 01;1\ · '. "The men would duck down to 
come home with half a dozen trout) 1 ;ke.. ~4-
KH: So Colin's drawings are not unusual? 
LB : Oh..No. If you wanted a meal you'd always catch a fish. Somewhere 
up in that territory is a beautiful gold watch of mine. 
KH: It would be overgrown now, if it hasn't been found now I don't 
think it will be every found. 

Did they go in with collapsible rods or did they just take a bit 
of a stick to go f ishing with. 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

Proper rods. We all had ou. own rod. 
vp 

You'd keep those/'\.in the bedroom I suppose when you weren't there. 
We wouldn't leave those, we'd pack them. They were too valuable . 
There's still a razor strap .lt).1i, +!,_eve,- . 

We didn't have electricity. 
Would that have been Charlie~? 
Proba~ly. I suppose it would have been his. Then our nights -

we used to have to pack kerosene in for nights too. We'd always leave one 
or two lanterns out. We had a bit better kerosene light, we used to keep 
that in our bedroom - this is why it was locked - just for these few extras 
to make it a little bit more comfortable living while you were there yourself. 
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KH: Yes, fair enough. All the men would be up there for about four 

or five months wouldn't they? 

LB: Well no, not in one stretch. Only when we went up a couple of 
times trapping would we have been there for six months. But no, when they 

went up to 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 

LB: 

muster, they would only be about a fortnight, three weeks away. 
"-'•vl.( 

So the'l\.take the stock up in November/December. 

Always Melbourne Cup Day. 
2nd November or something. 
Yes well they'd be away a couple, three weeks when you took them 

up and then as I say we'd go up at different times perhaps when we wantr.d 
you , youef 

too. Then when · · went mustering you d go up and do the big muster, · 
be about three weeks.,. I've been a few times. Then when they'd go back for 
the stragglers, Hiey c.:J:>v/d(?nly be 10 days or a couple of weeks at the outside. 
Then you'd sit at home and wait for the phone to ring to say well we're back. 

KH: 
LB: 
if it was 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 

LB: 

We're back in one piece! 
Yes, nothing has gone wrong. And especially we'd always know 

.._,.,., kviOl,,I 

snowing in the mountains -/\it was worrying. 
By then it's pretty late - after Easter? 
Yes. I've known them to go back in June. 
To get some more strays? 
Yes when they've had a bad muster. It would only take a day to 

go up and then probably dash around quickly where they knew the drifts wouldn't 
-#•:, ~1t1 

be to pick up any stragglers - only a few to bring home - · hurry them 
/\ 

a bit. 

KH: Did they ever have any cattle snowed in? 
LB: A little - you never got them all. You'd get them the next year 

be 
or you'd probably taking cattle up and you'd pick a few stragglers up 

;A 
on ·the way - they'd hear the other cattle coming and all bunch round and 

wee -fu+-
you'd say 'there _ half a dozen'. 
KH: Do you remember any serious losses, where the snow came early 

and they were snowed in and died up there? 

LB: No, never. I would say that they never ever ceme on to a dead 

beast that was snowed in. 
KH: So if they died, they died back down on the home property? 
LB: Yes and they'd be poor, we'd have to bring them out for the winter 
and feed. Sometimes the stragglers would be very poor because they'd do 
a lot of walking to find feed out of the snow line. 
KH : 

LB: 
KH: 

Did you ever take sheep up there? 
No . 
Always cattle - the Wheelers always took cattle? 
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LB: Never, we weren't sheep people. I don't think on that side that 
there were ever many sheep. I think old Toolong might have because this old 
Tiny, he used to live there all the year, except in winter. 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 

LB: 

Toolong hut that you're talking about isn't near Patens is it? 
No. 

There's another hut along there. 

We used to have to cross the river, go down from our hut, it would 
be about 3 mile. 
KH: On the Toolong Range - there's another hut - I can't remember 
the name of it, near Pat•ns. 

bv;/f-
LB: 
old would 
KH: 

That Patens hut, that wa~in latter years, it wouldn't be terribly 
it, it wouldn't be like the Wheeler hut? 
No, it might be the '40s, Patens hut. I know it just needed a 

lot of repairs, they've just rebuilt the chimney on it. 

Refreshments 

LB: ..• we'd taken my daughter - I mustn't lo6e · those now that I've 
found them - she was speaking to me a couple of years, it might be 12 months, 
when we stayed with her and I'm sure she told me that these Findlay girls -
they1re. sisters of Colin's - were talking about . • • I think the idea was to 

go to Clover Flat and then walk in. They said to me, this niece of mine, she !>aid 

'Auntie Lila I'd love to do that, what about you' and I looked at her and 
I said 'Your age and my age, no thank you very much'. Whether they ever 
did it or not I don't know. Did Colin mention it? .:r:.. e,._,, 
KH: No ' spoke to Colin on the phone. I don't think Col.in; been 
in there for a long time. 

' LB: Heavens, Colin wouldn't have been in there 
KH: Since '45 or something when he caught those fish I think, that 
was probably the only time. 

LB: The girls only went there once or twice perhaps too, his sisters. 
Whether they ever did that .•• 
KH: 

mountains, 

l>e 
There didn't seem to much information about on tha t side of the 

/\. 
I was .,.._uite s urprised. 

LB: Well apart from myself and Harry - well he and my husband - every 
year used to muster and t ook the cattle up. My husband would ring Harry 
or see him and say 'will you be ready to t ake off on such and such a day, 
we'd better do something about it' . Of course they'd take a few of the ir 
cattle up. I think one year when we were burnt out we might have taken 
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a few on ~,s-f--~+-- but we never did that sort of thing, we just paid for 

our own and Harry used to take a few of his. h.W 
KH: But you would have more - you would have had some leas7\as well as 

your freehold? 
LB: Oh yes. 

KH: Did you go right up towards Pretty Plain? 

Oh yes., 
It would have included Pretty Plain because that was Captain Chi ,_lm! 

/\ 
Oh Captain Chi$1m had a bit up there but they didn't worry 

LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
about it. But we used to go right up to Pretty Plain. 

KH: You'd know the :log Cabin hut? . 

LB: 
KH: 

Yes, with the lyre birds. 
What about th:'Pug,ilistic hut, where the Tooma River comes over 

/\ 
the mountains and the Pµg,listic creek comes in? 

LB: Oh yes, I was never at that hut. 

KH: You would have seen it across the plain? 

LB: Yes,.......-- a~ :S.l'IAkey p {a.,"-' . 
KH: Could I have rung up a Goldy Whitehead? 

LB: Yes but he would know nothing about it, he wouldn't know what 

you were talking about. 
KH: 

LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 

Yes, I think I must have rung him up. 
The Nankervis' yes, they only had country up at Geehi and Groggan. 
There's a Jimmy Nankervis that I'm supposed to see at Corryong. 
I doubt if they've ever been to Toolong. 
Errol Scammel might be good, but I think he too was mainly Dead 

Horse Gap way, up the other end of the mountains. 

LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

And he only used to take fishermen. 

Yes, that could be true. 
He used to do that for a living. 

KH: He used to take up Elyne Mitchell in the winter time to the 
off edge of the snow, up Hannel's Spur and then they'd go and ski. 

LB: 
somewhere 
Wheelers, 

He was more for the tourist side. He might have had a few cattle 
up in there, but it wouldn't have been a lot. But apart from 

.--l~e,i-~ 
and we used to take .Greg Greg sometimes some of · - that 

A 
was Greg Greg station - the Milnes have it no~, it used to be P(~rces -
my first husband's aunt. Paddy Daly would occasionally, if we were short 
of a man help7~:-' he wouldn't have been there to have done much either, 

.I\ That's right, the time my daughter got so ill, we had to send 
a"4 

home, it was Paddy Daly that went and got him - ' · rode all night. 
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KH: 
LB: 

She got ill out at Wheelers? 
No not at the hut, at home. My husband was up in the mountains 

and the doctor didn't think she was going to live, she got very ill. That 
would have been the time I think they were building 1'-ehut and dad was up 
there too and dad said he hardly slept for a week because there he was not 
knowing what was happening to his dear little granddaughter. 
it was nice up there, it was worrying, 

Although 

KH: Your daughter seems to be a good yardstick to sort out some 
of these dates by, when was she born. 
LB: 
be 47. 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 
KH: 

She was born in it's her birthday on Thursday and she will 

1935 she was born. 
Yes that would be right. 

She rode up there when she was five or something the first time, 
She wouldn't have been any more, if she were five. 
So that was 1940, ~he War had already started. You went up 

there before she was born, a couple of years before she was born, soon after 
you were married! 

LB: Yes and then after we were married and after she was born, that 
stopped me for a while, and then I used to go quite often. 
KH: So in the 40s you went quite a lot until what 
LB: I've been trying to think when we didn't have the mountains, 
I'm sure we still had the mountains when we got the new home and the farm. 
We weren't in the home long when my husband had his first heart attack, 
then we just sold everything and retired, built a home in Corryong. The 
new home on the farm was built about 27-28 years ago and he will have been 
dead 18 years this year, so we were only in it a few years when he had his 
heart attack. 
KH: Sounds like the early 50s! 
LB: Then he lived for about 8-10 years after he'd had the first 
one, with a few in between, 
KH: Sounds like the late 40s or early 50s was the last time you 
went in there? 
LB: 
there. 
KH: 
LB: 

Yes it--would have been late 50s the last time I'd have been 

In the late 50s your daughter would have been over 20 by then. 
Yes and she hadn't been there for a few years, she was working . 

She left home about 17, 18. This niece of mine - they'd have been kids 
when we took them up - say 10 to 14 - that would be about the age of them 
both. 
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LB: That would be about the time when they were finished going up. 

KR: Right that brings us to '48 or '49 or so. Colin told me on 

the phone that he thought the hut, this is probably the old Wheelers that 
he's referring to, was built in about 1925 or so and that he camped in the 

old hut. 
LB: 
KH: 
was born. 
LB: 

That must be this remodelled one. 
You reckon it was remodelled about '33, '34, before your daughter 

Yes, but when this one here was first built, that's there now, 
that would be what he is talking about, that's what he's speaking about . 

Is that damn tape still on. 
KR : Yes I've turned it over, it goes for 1½ hours. 

LB: Oh well if somebody hears a couple of words that shouldn't be 

in it, too bad. 
KR : 
LB: 

You didn't say anything ... ~~t' (I 

" You wouldn't like me to repeat some of . One Arm· ? 
I\ 

KR: Yes. 
LB : No I don't think so. 

KR: His swearing, I've heard a lot of swearing in my time. There's 
a number of people who refer to his swearing. Lindsay Willis talked about 

it and Elyne Mitchell talked about it. 

LB: 
KR: 
LB: 

And yet you know Elyne Mitchell really didn't know him. 

By hearsay mainly. 
She didn't come to To_Nong until after the War . Tom and Elyne, 

the~ oldest child would be only 40. 
KR: I know they started having children in the late 30s . There 
were two daughters first. They were very busy skiing in the 30s and then 
Tom went off to the War, he became a prisoner of war I think. 

LB: 
KR: 
LB: 
KR: 

She didn't come there until she was well grown up. 
Yes I know, she met Tom through skiing. 
She can't go back that many years. 
She was going by hearsay partly and the fact that they went 

there with their jeeps in 1949. 

Interruption 

LB : ke.-. spilt a cup of hot tea and gave her carbuncles around the 
neck. That was in the first Wheeler hut, the one's that is down below. 
KR: How can spilt tea give you carbuncles? 
LB: She got burnt, it scalded her. 
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KR: 
LB: 
KH: 

Interruption 

That was Charlie's mother, in the old hut? 
The original. 
That would have been back in the '20s. 

KR: Would I be able to borrow some of these, four or five to possibly 
have copies made. This one is a beauty of Wheelers hut, it tells you about 
what state it was in, about the fences, shows you where it is because it's 
got Jargungal in the distance, it's a good one. I think there's bound 
to be other things turn up, I think that happens to most people when I inter-
view them. They're so surprised that's someone is even interested in the 
first place. 
LB : After you rang me that night, I went one day and I scribbled 
down these few notes and it took me about 2 hours to find where I'd put 

I had those of us in the jeep up there. them. 
KH: It's not that important, I can always get some of that story 
from Tom. 

LB : I've forgotten half the people that used to go with us. We'd 
get to the foot of the mountain and Tom would get out and pick a gum leaf 
and put it in the back wheel of the jeep to keep the evil spirits away. 
I bet he didn't tell you that? 
KR: No. I've never really done a proper interview with him. 
LB: And he had an old hat with the cross bones on the front of it 
and we used to go up and all take steaks - b b · h b h . . q. - in t e us ••. 
KH: When you went skiing? 

LB: Yes . This was before the Snowy, there were no roads there then. 
We got right up on one of the spurs and we said 'look if we go down - zigzag -
Cooma is just down over there sort of thing' and we always wanted t o do 
it. We had this old jeep 'Iris' and we used t o just go on these trips. 
We'd sit up and have these lovely b.b.q. and everything you could think 
of and Tom would sit up with a tin of bully beef and his old tin mug. Quite 
eccentric, always has been - it ' s fun with these people with all these brains .. 
I think. But as for any of the mountains and what we did and the happenings 
up there, you do forget. Ir • ,, 

vi I ""} ') 
KH: Do you remember any other outstanding things about · or 
about any stories that he told or sayinihe had, apart from the ones that 
you can't record. "-
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LB: He was a very down to earth man, he was never a drinker, he 

smoked cigars and there wasn't a thing he couldn't do. 
KH: Were there any particular stories that he told? 

LB: I can't think of any particular one that he used too. Of course 

they reckon the Kellys were into Toolong you know. 
KH: The Kelly Gang? 

LB: He swore by that. 
KH: Did he talk about the gold rush? 

LB: Yes, and the Kiandra gold rush, he used to go through there 
and the mountains, but I don 't know that he was ever up there when they 
were digging, I don't think. He always used to say there's still gold 

there . 
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KH: 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

The floor was already in, in the old hut? 

Yes, two rooms. They probably trimmed it, levelled it off. 
And the windows were in? 

Yes. I would say that they levelled the floor off and probably 
put new bits in. I know they had to put new foundations, jack it up. 
KH: New p~ers probably! 
LB: Yes, they had a bit of that to do and I think the chimney was 
rebuilt, it was only a tin chimney. 

END OF SIDE 2. 

KH: He never did any panning himself. END OF TAPE. 

LB: No and we never bothered when we went up there either. There 
was an old chap by the name of Anderson used to live in a house right on 
the river at To-wong. My father's told me this too, that he'd kill a beast 
and hang it up at night and he'd be gone next morning - it would be the 
Kellys and then pack it back to To...wong. So it all probably was in the 
time of the Kellys and the Wheelers, I mean the very original hut, they may 

have used it. 
KH: Was there anything of that original hut left? 
LB: I don't remember, .,. 
KH: You don't remember any old fruit trees,,,,_!=racks, or_Aoundations? 
LB: I could have ridden over old bits of timber and not taken a great 

deal of notice, I suppose I have but not to be confident and say yes I know 
just where that post was. But of course that could have gone from the time 
I was born until when I got married. I don't know what happened in that 

period of time. 
KH: That sounds like a very old hut that one. Do you remember anything 
about the building of Wheeler's hut, like what time of the year they cut 
the trees? 
LB: 
KH: 
LB: 

When my father was up there, that was in the summer . 
Did they go up earlier in the spring to fell the trees? 
No. 

KH: Would they fell and split at the same time? 
LB: Well yes, bec~use they only did this remodelling in the one jolt. 

Qvi,t. 
I think they went after J11as, I think. I would say they probably left January 
and come back March. They were a long time, a couple of months. 

.. 


